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Statutory auditors’ report
on the consolidated financial statements

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your general annual meeting, we hereby
report to you, for the year ended December 31, 2014, on:

e the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TOTAL S.A.;
o the justification of our assessments;
o the specific verification required by law.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the board of directors. Our role is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

I.  Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit involves
performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and
liabilities and of the financial position of the group as at December 31, 2014 and of the results of its
operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to the matter set out in note “Introduction”
to the consolidated financial statements which sets out a change in accounting methods related to
the change in the presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements from the euro to

the U.S. dollar.

II. Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L. 823-9 of the French commercial code (Code de
commerce) relating to the justification of our assessments, we bring to your attention the following
matters:

As stated in note “Introduction” to the consolidated financial statements, some accounting principles
applied by TOTAL S.A. involve a significant amount of assumptions and estimates. Management
reviews these estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis, by reference to past experience and
various other factors considered as reasonable which form the basis for assessing the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities. However, actual results may differ significantly from these
estimates, if different assumptions or circumstances apply. These assumptions and estimates relate
principally to the application of the successful efforts method for the oil and gas activities, the
valuation of long-lived assets, the provisions for asset retirement obligations and environmental
remediation, the pensions and post-retirements benefits and the income tax computation. Detailed
information relating to the application of these accounting principles is given in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In order to assess the reasonableness of management’s estimates, we performed audit procedures,
using sampling techniques, that entailed the review of the assumptions and calculations on which
these estimates are based, the comparison of prior years’ actual results to their related estimates
and the review of management’s process for approving these estimates. Additionally, the notes to
the financial statements were reviewed to ensure that appropriate information regarding the
estimates used by management had been disclosed.

In addition, regarding the impairment of long-lived assets described in note 4.E to the consolidated
financial statements, we reviewed the manner in which impairment tests were performed and the
key assumptions that led to the determination of recoverable amounts. We also assessed the
sensitivity of the valuation to possible changes in these assumptions and the management’s process
for approving these estimates.

These audit procedures support our assessment of the reasonableness of these estimates.

These assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole, and therefore contributed to the opinion we formed which is expressed in the first part of
this report.

I1l. Specific verification

As required by law we have also verified, in accordance with professional standards applicable in
France, the information related to the group, presented in the management report.
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We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Paris-La Défense, March 2, 2015

The statutory auditors
French original signed by

KPMG Audit ERNST & YOUNG Audit
Michel Piette Valérie Besson Yvon Salaiin Laurent Miannay
Partner Partner Partner Partner
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Consolidated statement of income

TOTAL

For the year ended December 31,

M$)"® 2014 2013 2012
Sales (notes 4 &5) 236,122 251,725 257,037
Excise taxes (24,104) (23,756) (22,821)
Revenues from sales 212,018 227,969 234,216
Purchases, net of inventory variation (note 6)  (152,975) (160,849) (162,908)
Other operating expenses (note 6) (28,349) (28,764) (29,273)
Exploration costs (note 6) (1,964) (2,169) (1,857)
Deprematlon, depletion and amortization of tangible assets and mineral (19,656) (11,994) (12,237)
interests
Other income (note 7) 2,577 2,290 1,897
Other expense (note 7) (954) (2,800) (1,178)
Financial interest on debt (748) (889) (863)
Financial income from marketable securities & cash equivalents 108 85 128
Cost of net debt (note 29) (640) (804) (735)
Other financial income (note 8) 821 696 717
Other financial expense (note 8) (676) (702) (641)
Equity in net income (loss) of affiliates (note 12) 2,662 3,415 2,582
Income taxes (note 9) (8,614) (14,767) (16,747)
Consolidated net income 4,250 11,521 13,836
Group share 4,244 11,228 13,648
Non-controlling interests 6 293 188
Earnings per share ($) 1.87 4.96 6.05
Fully-diluted earnings per share ($) 1.86 4.94 6.02

(a) Except for per share amounts.



Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

TOTAL

For the year ended December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Consolidated net income 4,250 11,521 13,836
Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gains and losses (1,526) 682 (1,171)
Tax effect 580 (287) 465
Currency translation adjustment generated by the parent company (9,039) 3,129 1,324
Items not potentially reclassifiable to profit and loss (9,985) 3,524 618
Currency translation adjustment 4,245 (1,925) (397)
Available for sale financial assets (29) 33 (435)
Cash flow hedge 97 156 83
Share of other comprehensive income of equity affiliates, net amount (1,538) (805) 249
Other 3 (12) (18)
Tax effect (18) (62) 82
Items potentially reclassifiable to profit and loss 2,760 (2,615) (436)
Total other comprehensive income (net amount) (note 17) (7,225) 909 182
Comprehensive income (2,975) 12,430 14,018
- Group share (2,938) 12,193 13,848
- Non-controlling interests (37) 237 170



Consolidated balance sheet

TOTAL

As of December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets, net (notes 5 & 10) 14,682 18,395 16,965
Property, plant and equipment, net (notes 5 & 11) 106,876 104,480 91,477
Equity affiliates: investments and loans (note 12) 19,274 20,417 18,153
Other investments (note 13) 1,399 1,666 1,571
Hedging instruments of non-current financial debt (note 20) 1,319 1,418 2,145
Deferred income taxes (note 9) 4,079 3,838 2,982
Other non-current assets (note 14) 4,192 4,406 3,513
Total non-current assets 151,821 154,620 136,806
Current assets

Inventories, net (note 15) 15,196 22,097 22,954
Accounts receivable, net (note 16) 15,704 23,422 25,339
Other current assets (note 16) 15,702 14,892 13,307
Current financial assets (note 20) 1,293 739 2,061
Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) 25,181 20,200 20,409
Assets classified as held for sale (note 34) 4,901 3,253 5,010
Total current assets 77,977 84,603 89,080
Total assets 229,798 239,223 225,886
LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Shareholders' equity

Common shares 7,518 7,493 7,454
Paid-in surplus and retained earnings 94,646 98,254 92,485
Currency translation adjustment (7,480) (1,203) (1,696)
Treasury shares (4,354) (4,303) (4,274)
Total shareholders' equity - Group share (note 17) 90,330 100,241 93,969
Non-controlling interests 3,201 3,138 1,689
Total shareholders' equity 93,531 103,379 95,658
Non-current liabilities

Deferred income taxes (note 9) 14,810 17,850 16,006
Employee benefits (note 18) 4,758 4,235 4,939
Provisions and other non-current liabilities (note 19) 17,545 17,517 15,285
Non-current financial debt (note 20) 45,481 34,574 29,392
Total non-current liabilities 82,594 74,176 65,622
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 24,150 30,282 28,563
Other creditors and accrued liabilities (note 21) 16,641 18,948 19,316
Current borrowings (note 20) 10,942 11,193 14,535
Other current financial liabilities (note 20) 180 381 232
Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale (note 34) 1,760 864 1,960
Total current liabilities 53,673 61,668 64,606
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 229,798 239,223 225,886



Consolidated statement of cash flow

TOTAL
(note 27)

For the year ended December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated net income 4,250 11,521 13,836
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 20,859 13,358 13,466
Non-current liabilities, valuation allowances, and deferred taxes (1,980) 1,567 1,889
Impact of coverage of pension benefit plans - - (465)
(Gains) losses on disposals of assets (1,979) (80) (1,715)
Undistributed affiliates' equity earnings 29 (775) 272
(Increase) decrease in working capital 4,480 2,525 1,392
Other changes, net (51) 397 183
Cash flow from operating activities 25,608 28,513 28,858
CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment additions (26,320) (29,748) (25,574)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (471) (22) (245)
Investments in equity affiliates and other securities (949) (1,756) (1,152)
Increase in non-current loans (2,769) (2,906) (2,504)
Total expenditures (30,509) (34,431) (29,475)
Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 3,442 1,766 1,822
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash sold 136 2,654 452
Proceeds from disposals of non-current investments 1,072 330 3,618
Repayment of non-current loans 1,540 1,649 1,651
Total divestments 6,190 6,399 7,543
Cash flow used in investing activities (24,319) (28,032) (21,932)
CASH FLOW USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance (repayment) of shares:

- Parent company shareholders 420 485 41

- Treasury shares (289) (238) (88)
Dividends paid:

- Parent company shareholders (7,308) (7,128) (6,660)

- Non-controlling interests (154) (156) (133)
Other transactions with non-controlling interests 179 2,153 -
Net issuance (repayment) of non-current debt 15,786 11,102 6,780
Increase (decrease) in current borrowings (2,374) (9,037) (3,540)
Increase (decrease) in current financial assets and liabilities (351) 1,298 (1,217)
Cash flow used in financing activities 5,909 (1,521) (4,817)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,198 (1,040) 2,109
Effect of exchange rates (2,217) 831 153
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 20,200 20,409 18,147
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 25,181 20,200 20,409




Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

TOTAL

Paid-in surplus Currency Shareholders' Non- Total
and retained translation equity - Group controllingshareholders’
Common shares issued earnings adjustment Treasury shares share interests equity

(M$) Number Amount Number Amount
As of January 1, 2012 2,363,767,313 7,447 86,461 (2,884)  (109,554,173) (4,357) 86,667 1,749 88,416
Net income 2012 - - 13,648 - - - 13,648 188 13,836
Other comprehensive income (Note 17) - - (987) 1,187 - - 200 (18) 182
Comprehensive income - - 12,661 1,187 - - 13,848 170 14,018
Dividend - - (6,728) - - - (6,728) (133) (6,861)
Issuance of common shares (Note 17) 2,165,833 7 34 - - - 41 - 41
Purchase of treasury shares - - - - (1,800,000) (88) (88) - (88)
Sale of treasury shares® - - (171) - 2,962,534 171 - - -
Share-based payments (Note 25) - - 188 - - - 188 - 188
Share cancellation (Note 17) - - - - - - - - -
Other operations with non-controlling interests - - 20 1 - - 21 (21) -
Other items - - 20 - - - 20 (76) (56)
As of December 31, 2012 2,365,933,146 7,454 92,485 (1,696)  (108,391,639) (4,274) 93,969 1,689 95,658
Net income 2013 - - 11,228 - - - 11,228 293 11,521
Other comprehensive income (Note 17) - - 473 492 - - 965 (56) 909
Comprehensive income - - 11,701 492 - - 12,193 237 12,430
Dividend - - (7,116) - - - (7,116) (156) (7,272)
Issuance of common shares (Note 17) 11,745,014 39 446 - - - 485 - 485
Purchase of treasury shares - - - - (4,414,200) (238) (238) - (238)
Sale of treasury shares® - - (209) - 3,591,391 209 - - -
Share-based payments (Note 25) - - 189 - - - 189 - 189
Share cancellation (Note 17) - - - - - - - - -
Other operations with non-controlling interests - - 749 1 - - 750 1,355 2,105
Other items - - 9 - - - 9 13 22
As of December 31, 2013 2,377,678,160 7,493 98,254 (1,203)  (109,214,448) (4,303) 100,241 3,138 103,379
Net income 2014 - - 4,244 - - - 4,244 6 4,250
Other comprehensive income (Note 17) - - (907) (6,275) - - (7,182) 43) (7,225)
Comprehensive income - - 3,337 (6,275) - - (2,938) 37) (2,975)
Dividend - - (7,378) - - - (7,378) (154) (7,532)
Issuance of common shares (Note 17) 7,589,365 25 395 - - - 420 - 420
Purchase of treasury shares - - - - (4,386,300) (283) (283) - (283)
Sale of treasury shares® - - (232) - 4,239,335 232 - - -
Share-based payments (Note 25) - - 114 - - - 114 - 114
Share cancellation (Note 17) - - - - - - - - -
Other operations with non-controlling interests - - 148 ) - - 146 195 341
Other items - - 8 - - - 8 59 67
As of December 31, 2014 2,385,267,525 7,518 94,646 (7,480)  (109,361,413) (4,354) 90,330 3,201 93,531

(a) Treasury shares related to the restricted stock grants.



TOTAL
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

On February 11, 2015, the Board of Directors established and authorized the publication of the Consolidated Financial
Statements of TOTAL S.A. for the year ended December 31, 2014, which will be submitted for approval to the
shareholders’ meeting to be held on May 29, 2015.

Introduction

The Consolidated Financial Statements of TOTAL S.A. and its subsidiaries (the Group) are presented in U.S. dollars
and have been prepared on the basis of IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) as adopted by the
European Union and IFRS as issued by the IASB (International Accounting Standard Board) as of December 31,
2014.

In order to make the financial information of TOTAL more readable by better reflecting the performance of its activities
mainly carried out in U.S. dollars, TOTAL has changed, effective January 1, 2014, the presentation currency of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements from the Euro to the US Dollar. The statutory financial statements of TOTAL
S.A,, the parent company of the Group, remain prepared in euro. The dividend paid remains fixed in euro.

Following this change in accounting policy, the comparative consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S.
dollars.

Currency translation adjustments have been set to zero as of January 1, 2004, the date of transition to IFRS.
Cumulative currency translation adjustments are presented as if the Group had used the US Dollar as the presentation
currency of its consolidated financial statements since that date.

The accounting policies and principles applied in the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2014
were the same as those that were used as of December 31, 2013 except for amendments and interpretations of IFRS
which were mandatory for the periods beginning after January 1, 2014 (and not early adopted):

e In May 2013, the IASB issued the interpretation IFRIC 21 “Levies”. This interpretation is applicable
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The text indicates that the obligating
event for the recognition of a liability is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers the
payment of the levy. The comparative consolidated financial statements have been restated accordingly.

The impact on shareholders’ equity as of January 1, 2012, is +$46 million. The impact on the statement of
income for 2012 is not significant. Net income, Group share, for 2013 is increased by $24 million.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the executive management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the date of
preparation of the financial statements and reported income and expenses for the period. The management reviews
these estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis, by reference to past experience and various other factors
considered as reasonable which form the basis for assessing the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. Actual
results may differ significantly from these estimates, if different assumptions or circumstances apply. These judgments
and estimates relate principally to the application of the successful efforts method for the oil and gas accounting, the
valuation of long-lived assets, the provisions for asset retirement obligations and environmental remediation, the
pensions and post-retirement benefits and the income tax computation.

Furthermore, when the accounting treatment of a specific transaction is not addressed by any accounting standard or
interpretation, the management applies its judgment to define and apply accounting policies that provide information
consistent with the general IFRS concepts: faithful representation, relevance and materiality.



1) Accounting policies

Pursuant to the accrual basis of accounting followed by the Group, the financial statements reflect the effects of
transactions and other events when they occur. Assets and liabilities such as property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are usually measured at cost. Assets and liabilities are measured at fair value when required by the
standards.

Accounting policies used by the Group are described below:

A) Principles of consolidation
Entities that are directly controlled by the parent company or indirectly controlled by other consolidated entities are fully
consolidated.

Investments in joint ventures are consolidated under the equity method. The Group accounts for joint operations by
recognizing its share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Investments in associates, in which the Group has significant influence, are accounted for by the equity method.
Significant influence is presumed when the Group holds, directly or indirectly (e.g. through subsidiaries), 20% or more of
the voting rights. Companies in which ownership interest is less than 20%, but over which the Company is deemed to
exercise significant influence, are also accounted for by the equity method.

All internal balances, transactions and income are eliminated.
B) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. This method requires the recognition of the
acquired identifiable assets, assumed liabilities and any non-controlling interest in the companies acquired by the Group
at their fair value.

The value of the purchase price is finalized up to a maximum of one year from the acquisition date.
The acquirer shall recognize goodwill at the acquisition date, being the excess of:

= The consideration transferred, the amount of non-controlling interests and, in business combinations
achieved in stages, the fair value at the acquisition date of the investment previously held in the acquired
company;

= Over the fair value at the acquisition date of acquired identifiable assets and assumed liabilities.

If the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of acquired identifiable assets and assumed liabilities, an
additional analysis is performed on the identification and valuation of the identifiable elements of the assets and liabilities.
After having completed such additional analysis any residual negative goodwill is recorded as income.

In transactions with non-controlling interests, the difference between the price paid (received) and the book value of non-
controlling interests acquired (sold) is recognized directly in equity.

C) Foreign currency translation

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared in the currency that most clearly reflects their business
environment. This is referred to as their functional currency.

0] Monetary transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the entity are translated at the
exchange rate on the transaction date. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
closing rate and the resulting exchange differences are recognized in the statement of income.

(i) Translation of financial statements denominated in foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities of foreign entities are translated into dollars on the basis of the exchange rates at the end of the
period. The income and cash flow statements are translated using the average exchange rates for the period. Foreign
exchange differences resulting from such translations are either recorded in shareholders’ equity under “Currency
translation adjustments” (for the Group share) or under “Non-controlling interests” (for the share of non-controlling
interests) as deemed appropriate.

D) Sales and revenues from sales

Sales figures include excise taxes collected by the Group within the course of its oil distribution operations. Excise taxes
are deducted from sales in order to obtain the “Revenues from sales” indicator.



(i) Sales of goods

Revenues from sales are recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been passed to the buyer
and when the amount is recoverable and can be reasonably measured.

Revenues from sales of crude oil, natural gas and coal are recorded upon transfer of title, according to the terms of the
sales contracts.

Revenues from the production of crude oil and natural gas properties, in which the Group has an interest with other
producers, are recognized based on actual volumes sold during the period. Any difference between volumes sold and
entittement volumes, based on the Group net working interest, is recognized as “Crude oil and natural gas inventories” or
“Other current assets” or “Other creditors and accrued liabilities”, as appropriate.

Quantities delivered that represent production royalties and taxes, when paid in cash, are included in oil and gas sales,
except for the United States and Canada.

Certain transactions within the trading activities (contracts involving quantities that are purchased from third parties then
resold to third parties) are shown at their net value in sales.

Exchanges of crude oil and petroleum products within normal trading activities do not generate any income and therefore
these flows are shown at their net value in both the statement of income and the balance sheet.

(i) Sales of services
Revenues from services are recognized when the services have been rendered.

Revenues from gas transport are recognized when services are rendered. These revenues are based on the quantities
transported and measured according to procedures defined in each service contract.

Shipping revenues and expenses from time-charter activities are recognized on a pro rata basis over a period that
commences upon the unloading of the previous voyage and terminates upon the unloading of the current voyage.
Shipping revenue recognition starts only when a charter has been agreed to by both the Group and the customer.

(iii) Solar Farm Development Projects

SunPower develops and sells solar farm projects. This activity generally contains a property component (land ownership
or an interest in land rights). The revenue associated with the development of these projects is recognized when the
project-entities and land rights are irrevocably sold.

Revenues under contracts for construction of solar systems are recognized based on the progress of construction works,
measured according to the percentage of costs incurred relative to total forecast costs.

E) Share-based payments

The Group may grant employees stock options, create employee share purchase plans and offer its employees the
opportunity to subscribe to reserved capital increases. These employee benefits are recognized as expenses with a
corresponding credit to shareholders’ equity.

The expense is equal to the fair value of the instruments granted. The expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the period in which the advantages are acquired.

The fair value of the options is calculated using the Black-Scholes model at the grant date.

For restricted share plans, the fair value is calculated using the market price at the grant date after deducting the
expected distribution rate during the vesting period. The number of allocated equity instruments can be revised during the
vesting period in cases of non compliance with performance conditions, with the exception of those related to the market,
or according to the rate of turnover of the beneficiaries.

The cost of employee-reserved capital increases is immediately expensed. A discount reduces the expense in order to
account for the non-transferability of the shares awarded to the employees over a period of five years.

F) Income taxes

Income taxes disclosed in the statement of income include the current tax expenses (or income) and the deferred tax
expenses (or income).

The Group uses the method whereby deferred income taxes are recorded based on the temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities recorded in the balance sheet and their tax bases, and on carry-forwards of
unused tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at
the balance sheet date. The tax rates used depend on the timing of reversals of temporary differences, tax losses and
other tax credits. The effect of a change in tax rate is recognized either in the Consolidated Statement of Income or in
shareholders’ equity depending on the item it relates to.



Deferred tax assets are recognized when future recovery is probable.

Asset retirement obligations and finance leases give rise to the recognition of assets and liabilities for accounting
purposes as described in paragraph 1K “Leases” and paragraph 1Q “Asset retirement obligations” of this Note. Deferred
income taxes resulting from temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of such assets and
liabilities are recognized.

Deferred tax resulting from temporary differences between the carrying amounts of equity-method investments and their
tax bases are recognized. The deferred tax calculation is based on the expected future tax effect (dividend distribution
rate or tax rate on capital gains).

G) Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income (Group share) by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the period, excluding TOTAL shares held by TOTAL S.A. (Treasury shares) and TOTAL
shares held by the Group subsidiaries which are deducted from consolidated shareholders’ equity.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income (Group share) by the fully-diluted weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Treasury shares held by the parent company, TOTAL S.A.,
and TOTAL shares held by the Group subsidiaries are deducted from consolidated shareholders’ equity. These shares
are not considered outstanding for purposes of this calculation which also takes into account the dilutive effect of stock
options, share grants and capital increases with a subscription period closing after the end of the fiscal year.

The weighted-average number of fully-diluted shares is calculated in accordance with the treasury stock method provided
for by IAS 33. The proceeds, which would be recovered in the event of an exercise of rights related to dilutive
instruments, are presumed to be a share buyback at the average market price over the period. The number of shares
thereby obtained leads to a reduction in the total number of shares that would result from the exercise of rights.

H) Oil and gas exploration and producing properties

The Group applies IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources”. Oil and gas exploration and production
properties and assets are accounted for in accordance with the successful efforts method.

() Exploration costs

Geological and geophysical costs, including seismic surveys for exploration purposes are expensed as incurred.

Mineral interests are capitalized as intangible assets when acquired. These acquired interests are tested for impairment
on a regular basis, property-by-property, based on the results of the exploratory activity and the management’s
evaluation.

In the event of a discovery, the unproved mineral interests are transferred to proved mineral interests at their net book
value as soon as proved reserves are booked.

Exploratory wells are tested for impairment on a well-by-well basis and accounted for as follows:

- Costs of exploratory wells which result in proved reserves are capitalized and then depreciated using the unit-of-
production method based on proved developed reserves;

- Costs of dry wells and wells that have not found proved reserves are charged to expense;

- Costs of exploratory wells are temporarily capitalized until a determination is made as to whether the well has found
proved reserves if both of the following conditions are met:

= The well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify, if appropriate, its completion as a producing
well, assuming that the required capital expenditures are made;

= The Group is making sufficient progress assessing the reserves and the economic and operating viability of
the project. This progress is evaluated on the basis of indicators such as whether additional exploratory
works are under way or firmly planned (wells, seismic or significant studies), whether costs are being
incurred for development studies and whether the Group is waiting for governmental or other third-party
authorization of a proposed project, or availability of capacity on an existing transport or processing facility.

Costs of exploratory wells not meeting these conditions are charged to expense.
(i) Oil and Gas producing assets

Development costs incurred for the drilling of development wells and for the construction of production facilities are
capitalized, together with borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction and the present value of estimated
future costs of asset retirement obligations. The depletion rate is usually equal to the ratio of oil and gas production for
the period to proved developed reserves (unit-of-production method).



With respect to production sharing contracts, this computation is based on the portion of production and reserves
assigned to the Group taking into account estimates based on the contractual clauses regarding the reimbursement of
exploration, development and production costs (cost oil) as well as the sharing of hydrocarbon rights (profit oil).

Transportation assets are depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on throughput or by using the straight-
line method whichever best reflects the duration of use of the economic life of the asset.

Proved mineral interests are depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on proved reserves.

I) Goodwill and other intangible assets excluding mineral interests

Other intangible assets include goodwill, patents, trademarks, and lease rights.
Intangible assets are carried at cost, after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Guidance for calculating goodwill is presented in Note 1 paragraph B to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Goodwill
is not amortized but is tested for impairment annually or as soon as there is any indication of impairment (see Note 1
paragraph L to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

In equity affiliates, goodwill is included in the investment book value.

Other intangible assets (except goodwill) have a finite useful life and are amortized on a straight-line basis over between
three to twenty years depending on the useful life of the assets.

Research and development
Research costs are charged to expense as incurred.
Development expenses are capitalized when the following can be demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of the project and the availability of the adequate resources for the completion of the
intangible asset;

- the ability of the asset to generate probable future economic benefits;
- the ability to measure reliably the expenditures attributable to the asset; and
- the feasibility and intention of the Group to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred.

J) Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. This cost includes borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or production of a qualifying
asset incurred until assets are placed in service. Borrowing costs are capitalized as follows:

o if the project benefits from a specific funding, the capitalization of borrowing costs is based on the borrowing rate;

o if the project is financed by all the Group’s debt, the capitalization of borrowing costs is based on the weighted
average borrowing cost for the period.

Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The costs of major turnarounds of refineries and
large petrochemical units are capitalized as incurred and depreciated over the period of time between two consecutive
major turnarounds.

Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over their useful lives, which are as
follows:

e Furniture, office equipment, machinery and tools 3-12 years
e Transportation equipment 5-20 years
e Storage tanks and related equipment 10-15 years
e Specialized complex installations and pipelines 10-30 years
e Buildings 10-50 years
K) Leases

A finance lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to the lessee.
These contracts are capitalized as assets at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments
according to the contract. A corresponding financial debt is recognized as a financial liability. These assets are
depreciated over the corresponding useful life used by the Group.
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Leases that are not finance leases as defined above are recorded as operating leases.

Certain arrangements do not take the legal form of a lease but convey the right to use an asset or a group of assets in
return for fixed payments. Such arrangements are accounted for as leases and are analyzed to determine whether they
should be classified as operating leases or as finance leases.

L) Impairment of long-lived assets

The recoverable amounts of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment as soon as
any indication of impairment exists. This test is performed at least annually for goodwill.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value (less costs to sell) or its value in use.

Assets are grouped into cash-generating units (or CGUs) and tested. A CGU is a homogeneous group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other groups of assets.

The value in use of a CGU is determined by reference to the discounted expected future cash flows, based upon the
management’s expectation of future economic and operating conditions. When this value is less than the carrying
amount of the CGU, an impairment loss is recorded. It is allocated first to goodwill in counterpart of "Other expenses".
These impairment losses are then allocated to "Depreciation, depletion and amortization of tangible assets and mineral
interests" for property, plant and mineral interests and to "Other expenses" for other intangible assets.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods can be reversed up to the original carrying amount, had the impairment
loss not been recognized. Impairment losses recognized for goodwill cannot be reversed.

M) Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are financial loans and receivables, investments in non-consolidated companies, publicly
traded equity securities, derivatives instruments and current and non-current financial liabilities.

The accounting treatment of these financial assets and liabilities is as follows:
(i) Loans and receivables

Financial loans and receivables are recognized at amortized cost. They are tested for impairment, by comparing the
carrying amount of the assets to estimates of the discounted future recoverable cash flows. These tests are conducted as
soon as there is any evidence that their fair value is less than their carrying amount, and at least annually. Any
impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income.

(ii) Other investments

These assets are classified as financial assets available for sale and therefore measured at their fair value. For listed
securities, this fair value is equal to the market price. For unlisted securities, if the fair value is not reliably determinable,
the securities are recorded at their historical value. Changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income. If
there is any evidence of a significant or long-lasting impairment loss, a loss is recorded in the statement of income. This
impairment is irreversible.

(iii) Derivative instruments

The Group uses derivative instruments to manage its exposure to risks of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and commodity prices. Changes in fair value of derivative instruments are recognized in the statement of income or
in other comprehensive income and are recognized in the balance sheet in the accounts corresponding to their nature,
according to the risk management strategy described in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
derivative instruments used by the Group are the following:

- Cash management

Financial instruments used for cash management purposes are part of a hedging strategy of currency and interest rate
risks within global limits set by the Group and are considered to be used for transactions (held for trading). Changes in
fair value are systematically recorded in the statement of income. The balance sheet value of those instruments is
included in “Current financial assets” or “Other current financial liabilities”.

- Long-term financing

When an external long-term financing is set up, specifically to finance subsidiaries, and when this financing involves
currency and interest rate derivatives, these instruments are qualified as:

i. Fair value hedge of the interest rate risk on the external debt and of the currency risk of the loans to subsidiaries.
Changes in fair value of derivatives are recognized in the statement of income as are changes in fair value of
underlying financial debts and loans to subsidiaries.

The fair value of those hedging instruments of long-term financing is included in assets under “Hedging
instruments on non-current financial debt” or in liabilities under “Non-current financial debt “for the non-current
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portion. The current portion (less than one year) is accounted for in “Current financial assets” or “Other current
financial liabilities”.

In case of the anticipated termination of derivative instruments accounted for as fair value hedges, the amount
paid or received is recognized in the statement of income and:

e If this termination is due to an early cancellation of the hedged items, the adjustment previously recorded as
revaluation of those hedged items is also recognized in the statement of income;

o |If the hedged items remain in the balance sheet, the adjustment previously recorded as a revaluation of
those hedged items is spread over the remaining life of those items.

i. Cash flow hedge of the currency risk of the external debt. Changes in fair value are recorded in Other
comprehensive Income for the effective portion of the hedging and in the statement of income for the ineffective
portion of the hedging. Amounts recorded in equity are transferred to the income statement when the hedged
transaction affects profit or loss.

The fair value of those hedging instruments of long-term financing is included in assets under “Hedging
instruments on non-current financial debt” or in liabilities under “Non-current financial debt for the non-current
portion. The current portion (less than one year) is accounted for in “Current financial assets” or “Other current
financial liabilities”.

If the hedging instrument expires, is sold or terminated by anticipation, gains or losses previously recognized in
equity remain in equity. Amounts are recycled to the income statement only when the hedged transaction affects
profit or loss.

- Foreign subsidiaries’ equity hedge

Certain financial instruments hedge against risks related to the equity of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is
not the euro (mainly the dollar). These instruments qualify as “net investment hedges” and changes in fair value are
recorded in other comprehensive income for the effective portion of the hedging and in the statement of income for the
ineffective portion of the hedging. Gains or losses on hedging instruments previously recorded in equity, are reclassified
to the statement of income in the same period as the total or partial disposal of the foreign activity.

The fair value of these instruments is recorded under “Current financial assets” or "Other current financial liabilities”.
- Financial instruments related to commodity contracts

Financial instruments related to commaodity contracts, including crude oil, petroleum products, gas, power and coal
purchase/sales contracts within the trading activities, together with the commodity contract derivative instruments such as
energy contracts and forward freight agreements, are used to adjust the Group's exposure to price fluctuations within
global trading limits. According to the industry practice, these instruments are considered as held for trading. Changes in
fair value are recorded in the statement of income. The fair value of these instruments is recorded in “Other current
assets” or “Other creditors and accrued liabilities” depending on whether they are assets or liabilities.

Detailed information about derivatives positions is disclosed in Notes 20, 28, 29, 30 and 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(iv) Current and non-current financial liabilities

Current and non-current financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) are recognized at amortized cost, except those for
which hedge accounting can be applied as described in the previous paragraph.

(v) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair values are estimated for the majority of the Group’s financial instruments, with the exception of publicly traded equity
securities and marketable securities for which the market price is used.

Estimations of fair value, which are based on principles such as discounting future cash flows to present value, must be
weighted by the fact that the value of a financial instrument at a given time may be influenced by the market environment
(liquidity especially), and also the fact that subsequent changes in interest rates and exchange rates are not taken into
account.

As a consequence, the use of different estimates, methodologies and assumptions could have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts.

The methods used are as follows:
- Financial debts, swaps

The market value of swaps and of bonds that are hedged by those swaps has been determined on an individual basis by
discounting future cash flows with the zero coupon interest rate curves existing at year-end.

- Financial instruments related to commodity contracts
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The valuation methodology is to mark-to-market all open positions for both physical and paper transactions. The
valuations are determined on a daily basis using observable market data based on organized and over the counter
(OTC) markets. In particular cases when market data is not directly available, the valuations are derived from observable
data such as arbitrages, freight or spreads and market corroboration. For valuation of risks which are the result of a
calculation, such as options for example, commonly known models are used to compute the fair value.

- Other financial instruments

The fair value of the interest rate swaps and of FRA's (Forward Rate Agreements) are calculated by discounting future
cash flows on the basis of zero coupon interest rate curves existing at year-end after adjustment for interest accrued but
unpaid.

Forward exchange contracts and currency swaps are valued on the basis of a comparison of the negotiated forward
rates with the rates in effect on the financial markets at year-end for similar maturities.

Exchange options are valued based on the Garman-Kohlhagen model including market quotations at year-end.
- Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 7 "Financial instruments: disclosures" established a fair value hierarchy for financial instruments and proposes the
following three-level classification:

e level 1: quotations for assets and liabilities (identical to the ones that are being valued) obtained at the valuation
date on an active market to which the entity has access;

e level 2: the entry data is observable data but does not correspond to quotations for identical assets or liabilities;

e level 3: the entry data is not observable data. For example: the data comes from extrapolation. This level applies
when there is no market or observable data and the company has to use its own hypotheses to estimate the data
that other market players would have used to determine the fair value of the asset.

Fair value hierarchy is disclosed in Notes 29 and 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(vi) Commitments to purchase shares held by non-controlling interests (put options written on minority
interests)

Put options granted to non-controlling-interest shareholders are initially recognized as financial liabilities at the present
value of the exercise price of the options with a corresponding reduction in shareholders’ equity. The financial liability
is subsequently measured at fair value at each balance sheet date in accordance with contractual clauses and any
variation is recorded in the statement of income (cost of debt).
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N) Inventories

Inventories are measured in the Consolidated Financial Statements at the lower of historical cost or market value. Costs
for petroleum and petrochemical products are determined according to the FIFO (First-In, First-Out) method and other
inventories are measured using the weighted-average cost method.

In addition stocks held for trading are measured at fair value less costs of sale.
Refining & Chemicals

Petroleum product inventories are mainly comprised of crude oil and refined products. Refined products principally
consist of gasoline, kerosene, diesel, fuel oil and heating oil produced by the Group's refineries. The turnover of
petroleum products does not exceed more than two months on average.

Crude oil costs include raw material and receiving costs. Refining costs principally include crude oil costs, production
costs (energy, labor, depreciation of producing assets) and an allocation of production overheads (taxes, maintenance,
insurance, etc.).

Costs of chemical product inventories consist of raw material costs, direct labor costs and an allocation of production
overheads. Start-up costs, general administrative costs and financing costs are excluded from the cost price of refined
and chemicals products.

Marketing & Services

The costs of refined products include mainly crude oil costs, production costs (energy, labor, depreciation of producing
assets) and an allocation of production overheads (taxes, maintenance, insurance, etc.).

Start-up costs, general administrative costs and financing costs are excluded from the cost price of refined products.

Product inventories purchased from entities external to the Group are valued at their purchase cost plus primary costs of
transport.

O) Treasury shares

Treasury shares of the parent company held by its subsidiaries or itself are deducted from consolidated shareholders'
equity. Gains or losses on sales of treasury shares are excluded from the determination of net income and are
recognized in shareholders’ equity.

P) Provisions and other non-current liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event for
which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required and when a reliable estimate can be made regarding the
amount of the obligation. The amount of the liability corresponds to the best possible estimate.

Provisions and non-current liabilities are comprised of liabilities for which the amount and the timing are uncertain. They
arise from environmental risks, legal and tax risks, litigation and other risks.

Q) Asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations, which result from a legal or constructive obligation, are recognized based on a reasonable
estimate in the period in which the obligation arises.

The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
depreciated over the useful life of this asset.

An entity is required to measure changes in the liability for an asset retirement obligation due to the passage of time
(accretion) by applying a risk-free discount rate to the amount of the liability. The increase of the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as “Other financial expense”.

R) Employee benefits

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country, the Group participates in employee benefit plans offering
retirement, death and disability, healthcare and special termination benefits. These plans provide benefits based on
various factors such as length of service, salaries, and contributions made to the governmental bodies responsible for the
payment of benefits.

These plans can be either defined contribution or defined benefit pension plans and may be entirely or partially funded
with investments made in various non-Group instruments such as mutual funds, insurance contracts, and other
instruments.
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For defined contribution plans, expenses correspond to the contributions paid.

Defined benefit obligations are determined according to the Projected Unit Method. Actuarial gains and losses may
arise from differences between actuarial valuation and projected commitments (depending on new calculations or
assumptions) and between projected and actual return of plan assets. Such gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income, with no possibility to subsequently recycle them to the income statement.

The past service cost is recorded immediately in the statement of income, whether vested or unvested.

The net periodic pension cost is recognized under “Other operating expenses”.

S) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows prepared in foreign currencies has been translated into dollars using the
exchange rate on the transaction date or the average exchange rate for the period. Currency translation differences
arising from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency into dollars using the
closing exchange rates are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows under “Effect of exchange rates’.
Therefore, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows will not agree with the figures derived from the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash on hand and highly liquid short-term investments that are easily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

Investments with maturity greater than three months and less than twelve months are shown under “Current financial
assets”.

Changes in current financial assets and liabilities are included in the financing activities section of the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows.

Non-current financial debt

Changes in non-current financial debt are presented as the net variation to reflect significant changes mainly related to
revolving credit agreements.

T) Carbon dioxide emission rights
In the absence of a current IFRS standard or interpretation on accounting for emission rights of carbon dioxide, the
following principles are applied:
- Emission rights are managed as a cost of production and as such are recognized in inventories:
e Emission rights allocated for free are booked in inventories with a nil carrying amount,
e Purchased emission rights are booked at acquisition cost,

e Sales or annual restorations of emission rights consist of decreases in inventories recognized based on a
weighted average cost,

e |f the carrying amount of inventories at closing date is higher than the market value, an impairment loss is
recorded.

- At each closing, a provision is recorded in order to materialize the obligation to surrender emission rights related to
the emissions of the period. This provision is calculated based on estimated emissions of the period, valued at
weighted average cost of the inventories at the end of the period. It is reversed when the emission rights are
surrendered.

- If emission rights to be surrendered at the end of the compliance period are higher than emission rights (allocated
and purchased) recorded in inventories, the shortage is accounted for as a liability at market value.

- Forward transactions are recognized at their fair market value in the balance sheet. Changes in the fair value of
such forward transactions are recognized in the statement of income.

U) Energy savings certificates

In the absence of current IFRS standards or interpretations on accounting for energy savings certificates, the following
principles are applied:

- If the obligations linked to the sales of energy are greater than the number of ESC's held then a liability is recorded.
These liabilities are valued based on the price of the last transactions,
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- Inthe event that the number of ESC’s held exceeds the obligation at the balance sheet date this is accounted for as
inventory,

- ESC inventories are valued at weighted average cost (acquisition cost for those ESC's acquired or cost incurred for
those ESC's generated internally).

If the carrying value of the inventory of certificates at the balance sheet date is higher than the market value, an
impairment loss is recorded in income.

V) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Pursuant to IFRS 5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”, assets and liabilities of affiliates that
are held for sale are presented separately on the face of the balance sheet. Depreciation of assets ceases from the date
of classification in “Non-current assets held for sale”.

Net income from discontinued operations is presented separately on the face of the statement of income. Therefore, the
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements related to the statement of income only refer to continuing operations.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group for which cash flows are independent. It represents a major line of
business or geographical area of operations which has been disposed of or is currently being held for sale.

W) New accounting texts not yet in effect

The standards or interpretations published respectively by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which were not yet in effect at December 31, 2014,
are as follows:

e Standards not yet adopted by the European Union at December 31, 2014

- In May 2014, the IASB issued standard IFRS 15 that includes requirements for the recognition of revenue from
contracts with customers. The standard is applicable for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 2017. The
impacts of the application of this standard are under review.

- In July 2014, the IASB issued standard IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” that includes requirements for the
recognition and measurement of financial instruments. This standard brings together three phases: classification
and measurement, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting excluding macro-hedging. The standard
is applicable for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 2018. The impacts of the application of this
standard are under review.

2) Main indicators - information by business segment

Performance indicators excluding the adjustment items, such as adjusted operating income, adjusted net operating
income, and adjusted net income are meant to facilitate the analysis of the financial performance and the comparison
of income between periods.

Adjustment items
The detail of these adjustment items is presented in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Adjustment items include:

(i) Special items

Due to their unusual nature or particular significance, certain transactions qualified as "special items" are excluded
from the business segment figures. In general, special items relate to transactions that are significant, infrequent or
unusual. However, in certain instances, transactions such as restructuring costs or assets disposals, which are not
considered to be representative of the normal course of business, may be qualified as special items although they may
have occurred within prior years or are likely to occur again within the coming years.

(i) The inventory valuation effect

The adjusted results of the Refining & Chemicals and Marketing & Services segments are presented according to the
replacement cost method. This method is used to assess the segments’ performance and facilitate the comparability
of the segments’ performance with those of its competitors.

In the replacement cost method, which approximates the LIFO (Last-In, First-Out) method, the variation of inventory
values in the statement of income is, depending on the nature of the inventory, determined using either the month-end
prices differential between one period and another or the average prices of the period rather than the historical value.
The inventory valuation effect is the difference between the results according to the FIFO (First-In, First-Out) and the
replacement cost.
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(iif) Effect of changes in fair value

The effect of changes in fair value presented as adjustment items reflects for some transactions differences between
internal measure of performance used by TOTAL's management and the accounting for these transactions under
IFRS.

IFRS requires that trading inventories be recorded at their fair value using period end spot prices. In order to best
reflect the management of economic exposure through derivative transactions, internal indicators used to measure
performance include valuations of trading inventories based on forward prices.

Furthermore, TOTAL, in its trading activities, enters into storage contracts, which future effects are recorded at fair
value in Group’s internal economic performance. IFRS precludes recognition of this fair value effect.

Main indicators

(i) Operating income (measure used to evaluate operating performance)

Revenue from sales after deducting cost of goods sold and inventory variations, other operating expenses, exploration
expenses and depreciation, depletion, and amortization.

Operating income excludes the amortization of intangible assets other than mineral interests, currency translation
adjustments and gains or losses on the disposal of assets.

(i) Net operating income (measure used to evaluate the return on capital employed)

Operating income after taking into account the amortization of intangible assets other than mineral interests, currency
translation adjustments, gains or losses on the disposal of assets, as well as all other income and expenses related to
capital employed (dividends from non-consolidated companies, equity in income of affiliates, capitalized interest
expenses), and after income taxes applicable to the above.

The only income and expense not included in net operating income but included in net income are interest expenses
related to net financial debt, after applicable income taxes (net cost of net debt) and non-controlling interests.

(iii) Adjusted income

Operating income, net operating income, or net income excluding the effect of adjustment items described above.

(iv) Eully-diluted adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted net income divided by the fully-diluted weighted-average number of common shares.

(v) Capital employed

Non-current assets and working capital, at replacement cost, net of deferred income taxes and non-current liabilities.
(vi) ROACE (Return on Average Capital Employed)

Ratio of adjusted net operating income to average capital employed between the beginning and the end of the period.
(vi)ROE (Return on Equity)

Ratio of adjusted consolidated net income to average adjusted shareholders’ equity (after distribution) between the
beginning and the end of the period.

(viii) Net debt

Non-current debt, including current portion, current borrowings, other current financial liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents and other current financial assets.
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3) Changes in the Group structure, main acquisitions and divestments

During 2014, 2013, and 2012, the main changes in the Group structure and main acquisitions and divestments were

as follows:

2014

» Upstream

TOTAL finalized in March 2014 the sale to Sonangol E&P of its interest in block 15/06 in Angola.

TOTAL finalized in March 2014 the acquisition from InterOil Corporation of a 40.1% interest (before
possible entry by the State) in block PRL 15 containing the gas field Elk-Antelope in Papua New Guinea
for an amount of $429 million, paid on April 2, 2014.

On February 27, 2014, TOTAL floated GazTransport et Technigaz S.A. (GTT), an engineering company
specializing in the design of cryogenic membranes for the transport and storage of LNG. With this
quotation on Euronext Paris, TOTAL reduced its interest in the equity of the company from 30.0% to
10.4%. The listing was completed at a price of €46 per share, valuing 100% of the equity of the company
on the listing date at €1.7 billion. Finally in December total signed a final agreement for the acquisition by
Temasek its entire remaining interest in GTT. The total of these two transactions amounted to more than
$650 million.

TOTAL finalized during 2014 the acquisition of an additional 1.28% interest in Novatek for an amount of
$434 million, bringing TOTAL's overall interest in Novatek to 18.24% as at December 31, 2014. Since July
18, 2014 the Group has not acquired any additional shares of Novatek.

TOTAL finalized in August 2014 the sale of its 10% interest in the Shah Deniz field and the South
Caucasus Pipeline to TPAO, the Turkish state-owned exploration and production company for an amount
of $1,513 million. This sale generated a gain on disposal of $580 million after tax.

TOTAL finalized in October 2014 the sale of its 25% interest in the Cardinal Gas Services LLC, , a
company specializing in the gathering and transport of gas in Ohio's Utica shale play area for an amount of
$449 million.

Information relating to sales in progress is presented in accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” in note 34.

2013

» Upstream

TOTAL finalized in February 2013 the acquisition of an additional 6% interest in the Ichthys liquefied
natural gas (LNG) project from its partner INPEX. TOTAL’s overall equity stake in the Ichthys LNG project
increased from 24% to 30%.

TOTAL finalized in February 2013 the sale to INPEX of a 9.99% indirect interest in offshore Angola Block
14

On March 27, 2013, TOTAL entered into an agreement for the sale to Suncor Energy Inc. of its 49%
interest in the Voyageur upgrader project, which is located in the Canadian province of Alberta and
intended to upgrade bitumen from the Fort Hills and Joslyn mines. The transaction amounted to $506
million. The mining development projects of Fort Hills and Joslyn continue according to the production
evacuation logistics studies jointly conducted with Suncor. The sale entailed a net loss of $1,646 million.

TOTAL finalized in June 2013 the sale of a 25% interest in the Tempa Rossa field in Italy to Mitsui.

TOTAL finalized in July 2013 the sale of 100% of Transport et Infrastructures Gaz France (TIGF) to a
consortium comprising Snam, EDF and GIC (Government of Singapore Investment Corporation) for an
amount of €1,558 million ($2,052 million), net of cash sold.

TOTAL finalized in September 2013 the sale of its Upstream interests in Trinidad & Tobago to The
National Gas Company of Trinidad & Tobago for an amount of $318 million, net of cash sold.

TOTAL finalized in December 2013 the acquisition by Qatar Petroleum International of 15% of the capital
of Total E&P Congo through a capital increase of $1,627 million,

TOTAL finalized during 2013 the acquisition of an additional 1.62% interest in Novatek for an amount of
$587 million, bringing TOTAL'’s overall interest in Novatek to 16.96% as at December 31, 2013.
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e In October 2013, a consortium in which TOTAL holds a 20% interest was awarded a production sharing
contract for 35 years to develop the Libra oil field in Brazil. TOTAL paid a signing bonus of 3,000 million
Brazilian Real (approximately $1,301 million).

» Refining & Chemicals

[ ]
12
>

TOTAL finalized in June 2013 the sale of its fertilizing businesses in Europe.

Upstream

TOTAL finalized in February 2012 the acquisition in Uganda of a one-third interest in Blocks 1, 2 and 3A held
by Tullow Oil plc for $1,487 million, entirely consisting of mineral interests. TOTAL became an equal partner
with Tullow and CNOOC in the blocks, each with a one-third interest and each being an operator of one of the
blocks. TOTAL is the operator of Block 1.

TOTAL finalized during 2012 the acquisition of an additional 1.25% interest in Novatek for an amount of $480
million, increasing TOTAL'’s overall interest in Novatek to 15.34% as of December 31, 2012.

TOTAL finalized in October 2012 the sale of its interest in the Cusiana field as well as a participation in OAM
and ODC pipelines in Colombia to Sinochem, for an amount of $409 million, net of cash sold.

Holding

During 2012, TOTAL gradually sold its remaining interest in Sanofi, generating a net capital gain of $438
million after tax. As at the 31 December 2012 the Group retained no further interest in the capital of Sanofi.

4) Business segment information

Financial information by business segment is reported in accordance with the internal reporting system and shows
internal segment information that is used to manage and measure the performance of TOTAL and which is reviewed
by the main operational decision-making body of the Group, namely the Executive Committee.

The operational profit and assets are broken down by business segment prior to the consolidation and inter-segment
adjustments.

Sales prices between business segments approximate market prices.

The Group's activities are divided into three business segments as follows:

an Upstream segment including, alongside the activities of the Exploration & Production of hydrocarbons, the
activities of Gas & Power;

a Refining & Chemicals segment constituting a major industrial hub comprising the activities of refining,
petrochemicals and specialty chemicals. This segment also includes the activities of oil Trading & Shipping; and

a Marketing & Services segment including the global activities of supply and marketing in the field of petroleum
products as well as the activity of New Energies.

In addition the Corporate segment includes holdings operating and financial activities.
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A) Information by business segment

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate  Intercompany Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Non-Group sales 23,484 106,124 106,509 5 - 236,122
Intersegment sales 29,183 44,950 1,615 236 (75,984) -
Excise taxes - (4,850) (19,254) - - (24,104
Revenues from sales 52,667 146,224 88,870 241 (75,984) 212,018
Operating expenses (26,235) (145,014) (86,931) (1,092) 75,984 (183,288)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of tangible
assets and mineral interests (15,938) (2,901) (781) (36) - (19,656)
Operating income 10,494 (1,691) 1,158 (887) - 9,074
Equity in net income (loss) of affiliates and
other items 4,302 90 (140) 178 - 4,430
Tax on net operating income (8,799) 391 (344) (8) - (8,760)
Net operating income 5,997 (1,210) 674 (717) - 4,744
Net cost of net debt (494)
Non-controlling interests (6)
Net income 4,244
For the year ended December 31, 2014 (adjustments (a)) Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Non-Group sales 31 - - - - 31
Intersegment sales - - - - - -
Excise taxes - - - - - -
Revenues from sales 31 - - - - 31
Operating expenses (164) (2,980) (551) - - (3,695)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of tangible (6,529) (1,450) ) ) ) (7.979)
assets and mineral interests
Operating income ® (6,662)  (4,430) (551) - - (11,643)
Equity_ in net income (loss) of affiliates and 883 (282) (203) ) ) 398
other items
Tax on net operating income 1,272 1,013 174 - - 2,459
Net operating income ® (4,507)  (3,699) (580) - - (8,786)
Net cost of net debt -
Non-controlling interests 193
Net income (8,593)
@ Adjustments include special items, inventory valuation effect and the effect of changes in fair value.
® Of which inventory valuation effect

On operating income (2,944) (525)

On net operating income (2,114) (384)
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For the year ended December 31, 2014 (adjusted) Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total
(M) @ Chemicals  Services

Non-Group sales 23,453 106,124 106,509 5 - 236,091
Intersegment sales 29,183 44,950 1,615 236 (75,984) -
Excise taxes - (4,850) (19,254) - - (24,104
Revenues from sales 52,636 146,224 88,870 241 (75,984) 211,987
Operating expenses (26,071) (142,034) (86,380) (1,092) 75,984 (179,593)
assets and mineralinerests | 00 (0409 (48D (8D (3) - (1Le77)
Adjusted operating income 17,156 2,739 1,709 (887) - 20,717
E?hueitryitign:ft income (loss) of affiliates and 3.419 372 63 178 ) 4,032
Tax on net operating income (10,071) (622) (518) (8) - (11,219
Adjusted net operating income 10,504 2,489 1,254 (717) - 13,530
Net cost of net debt (494)
Non-controlling interests (199)
Adjusted net income 12,837
Adjusted fully-diluted earnings per share ($) 5.63
(a)Except for earnings per share.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate  Intercompany Total
(M$) Chemicals Services

Total expenditures 26,520 2,022 1,818 149 - 30,509
Total divestments 5,764 192 163 71 - 6,190
Cash flow from operating activities 16,666 6,302 2,721 (81) - 25,608
Balance sheet as of December 31, 2014

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, net 105,273 9,512 6,443 330 - 121,558
Investments & loans in equity affiliates 14,921 3,516 837 - - 19,274
Other non-current assets 6,711 959 1,849 151 - 9,670
Working capital 2,015 4,041 2,141 (2,386) - 5,811
Provisions and other non-current liabilities (30,385) (4,290) (2,097) (341) - (37,113)
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 1,962 1,032 91 - - 3,085
Capital Employed (balance sheet) 100,497 14,770 9,264 (2,246) - 122,285
Less inventory valuation effect - (1,319) (439) 1) - (1,759)
é"ﬂfﬁ'{agi‘;ﬁg t information) 100,497 13,451 8,825  (2,247) - 120,526
ROACE as a percentage 11% 15% 13% - - 11%
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Non-Group sales 26,367 114,483 110,873 2 - 251,725
Intersegment sales 37,650 52,275 2,159 177 (92,261) -
Excise taxes - (4,814) (18,942) - - (23,756)
Revenues from sales 64,017 161,944 94,090 179 (92,261) 227,969
Operating expenses (31,875) (160,031) (91,343) (794) 92,261 (191,782)
aseets and minaral nterests. | OO (0489 (73) (33 (@ - (104
Operating income 22,658 177 2,014 (656) - 24,193
E&ﬂ%tg]mnset income (loss) of affiliates and 2688 181 55 (25) ) 2.899
Tax on net operating income (13,706) (612) (560) (29) - (14,907)
Net operating income 11,640 (254) 1,509 (710) - 12,185
Net cost of net debt (664)
Non-controlling interests (293)
Net income 11,228
For the year ended December 31, 2013 (adjustments (a)) Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate  Intercompany Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Non-Group sales (74) - - - - (74)
Intersegment sales - - - - - -
Excise taxes - - - - - -
Revenues from sales (74) - - - - (74)
Operating expenses (113) (1,405) (134) - - (1,652)
Depreciation, _deplet_ion and amortization of tangible (855) (184) 4) ) - (1,043)
assets and mineral interests
Operating income ® (1,042)  (1,589) (138) - - (2,769)
E?huétryitlg n:lst income (loss) of affiliates and (305) (268) 4 (34) ) (603)
Tax on net operating income 537 (254) 89 (45) - 327
Net operating income ® (810)  (2,111) (45) (79) - (3,045)
Net cost of net debt -
Non-controlling interests (19)
Net income (3,064)
@ Adjustments include special items, inventory valuation effect and the effect of changes in fair value.
® Of which inventory valuation effect

On operating income (978) (87)

On net operating income (656) (63)
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 (adjusted) Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total
(M$) (@) Chemicals Services

Non-Group sales 26,441 114,483 110,873 2 - 251,799
Intersegment sales 37,650 52,275 2,159 177 (92,261) -
Excise taxes - (4,814) (18,942) - - (23,756)
Revenues from sales 64,091 161,944 94,090 179 (92,261) 228,043
Operating expenses (31,762) (158,626) (91,209) (794) 92,261 (190,130)
gm0 s o) - aossy
Adjusted operating income 23,700 1,766 2,152 (656) - 26,962
E?hu(;tryitig n:ft income (loss) of affiliates and 2,993 449 51 9 ) 3.502
Tax on net operating income (14,243) (358) (649) 16 - (15,234)
Adjusted net operating income 12,450 1,857 1,554 (631) - 15,230
Net cost of net debt (664)
Non-controlling interests (274)
Ajusted net income 14,292
Adjusted fully-diluted earnings per share ($) 6.29
@ Except for earnings per share.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate  Intercompany Total
(M$) Chemicals Services

Total expenditures 29,750 2,708 1,814 159 - 34,431
Total divestments 5,786 365 186 62 - 6,399
Cash flow from operating activities 21,857 4,260 2,557 (161) - 28,513
Balance sheet as of December 31, 2013

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, net 103,667 12,407 6,441 360 - 122,875
Investments & loans in equity affiliates 15,862 3,542 1,013 - - 20,417
Other non-current assets 5,691 1,427 2,014 778 - 9,910
Working capital (327) 10,458 3,779 (2,729) - 11,181
Provisions and other non-current liabilities (31,574) (4,437) (2,303)  (1,288) - (39,602)
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 2,210 - - - - 2,210
Capital Employed (balance sheet) 95,529 23,397 10,944 (2,879) - 126,991
Less inventory valuation effect - (3,645) (893) (2) - (4,540)
é"ﬂfﬁ'{agi‘;ﬁg t information) 95529 19,752 10,051  (2,881) - 122,451
ROACE as a percentage 14% 9% 16% - - 13%
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For the year ended December 31, 2012 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total

(M$) Chemicals Services

Non-Group sales 28,449 117,067 111,281 240 - 257,037
Intersegment sales 40,498 57,134 970 256 (98,858) -
Excise taxes - (4,616) (18,205) - - (22,821)
Revenues from sales 68,947 169,585 94,046 496 (98,858) 234,216
Operating expenses (33,361) (166,379) (91,907) (1,249) 98,858 (194,038)
aseets and minaral nterests. 00 (955 (8%) (180 () - @223)
Operating income 26,031 1,350 1,359 (799) - 27,941
E&ﬂ%tg]mnset income (loss) of affiliates and 3,005 271 (252) 353 ) 3.377
Tax on net operating income (15,879) (337) (488) (163) - (16,867)
Net operating income 13,157 1,284 619 (609) - 14,451
Net cost of net debt (615)
Non-controlling interests (188)
Net income 13,648
For the year ended December 31, 2012 (adjustments (a)) Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total
(M3) Chemicals Services

Non-Group sales (12) - - - - (12)
Intersegment sales - - - - - -
Excise taxes - - - - - -
Revenues from sales (22) - - - - (12)
Operating expenses (752) (257) (294) (115) - (1,418)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of tangible

assets and mineral interests (1,538) (266) (87) B - (1,891)
Operating income ® (2,302) (523) (381) (115) - (3,321)
E?hu;tr%tig n:lst income (loss) of affiliates and 326 (51) (154) 188 ) 309
Tax on net operating income 817 90 85 (139) - 853
Net operating income ® (1,159) (484) (450) (66) - (2,159)
Net cost of net debt -
Non-controlling interests 35
Net income (2,124)

@ Adjustments include special items, inventory valuation effect and the effect of changes in fair value.

® Of which inventory valuation effect
On operating income - (230) (71)

On net operating income - (149) (50)
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For the year ended December 31, 2012 (adjusted) Upstream  Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total
@ Chemicals Services
(M$)
Non-Group sales 28,461 117,067 111,281 240 - 257,049
Intersegment sales 40,498 57,134 970 256 (98,858) -
Excise taxes - (4,616) (18,205) - - (22,821)
Revenues from sales 68,959 169,585 94,046 496 (98,858) 234,228
Operating expenses (32,609) (166,122) (91,613) (1,134) 98,858 (192,620)
Depreciation, _deplet_ion and amortization of tangible (8,017) (1,590) (693) (46) - (10,346)
assets and mineral interests
Adjusted operating income 28,333 1,873 1,740 (684) - 31,262
E?hu(;tryitlgn:ft income (loss) of affiliates and 2679 322 (98) 165 ) 3,068
Tax on net operating income (16,696) (427) (573) (24) - (17,720)
Adjusted net operating income 14,316 1,768 1,069 (543) - 16,610
Net cost of net debt (615)
Non-controlling interests (223)
Adjusted net income 15,772
Adjusted fully-diluted earnings per share ($) 6.96
@ Except for earnings per share.
For the year ended December 31, 2012 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Intercompany Total
Chemicals Services
(M$)
Total expenditures 25,200 2,502 1,671 102 - 29,475
Total divestments 3,595 392 196 3,360 - 7,543
Cash flow from operating activities 24,354 2,726 1,456 322 - 28,858
Balance sheet as of December 31, 2012
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, net 90,128 12,167 5,848 299 - 108,442
Investments & loans in equity affiliates 14,622 2,600 931 - - 18,153
Other non-current assets 4,255 1,565 1,694 552 - 8,066
Working capital (436) 12,742 3,752 (2,337) - 13,721
Provisions and other non-current liabilities (28,356) (4,020) (2,146) (1,708) - (36,230)
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 4,047 - - - - 4,047
Capital Employed (balance sheet) 84,260 25,054 10,079 (3,194) - 116,199
Less inventory valuation effect - (4,271) (847) 1) - (5,119)
((:ggéti?lleirggtgﬁgnt information) 84,260 20,783 9,232 (3,195) - 111,080
ROACE as a percentage 18% 9% 12% - - 15%
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B) ROE (Return on Equity)

The Group evaluates the return on equity as the ratio of adjusted consolidated net income to average adjusted
shareholders’ equity between the beginning and the end of the period. Thus, adjusted shareholders’ equity for the year
ended December 31, 2014 is calculated after payment of a dividend of €2.44 per share, subject to approval by the

shareholders’ meeting on May 29, 2015.
The ROE is calculated as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Adjusted net income - Group share 12,837 14,292 15,772
Adjusted non-controlling interests 199 274 223
Adjusted consolidated net income 13,036 14,566 15,995
Shareholders' equity - Group share 90,330 100,241 93,969
Distribution of the income based on existing shares at the closing date (1,686) (1,908) (1,757)
Non-controlling interests 3,201 3,138 1,689
Adjusted shareholders' equity® 91,845 101,471 93,901
ROE 13.5% 14.9% 17.7%

@adjusted shareholders' equity as of December 31, 2011 amounted to $86,748 million.

C) Reconciliation of the information by business segment with Consolidated Financial Statements

The table below presents the impact of adjustment items on the consolidated statement of income:

For the year ended December 31, 2014

Consolidated

statement of

(M$) Adjusted  Adjustments® income
Sales 236,091 31 236,122
Excise taxes (24,104) - (24,104)

Revenues from sales 211,987 31 212,018
Purchases, net of inventory variation (149,506) (3,469) (152,975)
Other operating expenses (28,123) (226) (28,349)
Exploration costs (1,964) - (1,964)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of tangible assets and mineral interests (11,677) (7,979) (19,656)
Other income 1,272 1,305 2,577
Other expense (700) (254) (954)
Financial interest on debt (748) - (748)
Financial income from marketable securities & cash equivalents 108 - 108

Cost of net debt (640) - (640)
Other financial income 821 - 821
Other financial expense (676) - (676)
Equity in net income (loss) of affiliates 3,315 (653) 2,662
Income taxes (11,073) 2,459 (8,614)
Consolidated net income 13,036 (8,786) 4,250
Group share 12,837 (8,593) 4,244
Non-controlling interests 199 (193) 6

(a)
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For the year ended December 31, 2013

Consolidated
statement of

(M$) Adjusted  Adjustments® income
Sales 251,799 (74) 251,725
Excise taxes (23,756) - (23,756)

Revenues from sales 228,043 (74) 227,969
Purchases, net of inventory variation (159,784) (1,065) (160,849)
Other operating expenses (28,177) (587) (28,764)
Exploration costs (2,169) - (2,169)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of tangible assets and mineral interests (10,951) (1,043) (11,994)
Other income 647 1,643 2,290
Other expense (574) (2,226) (2,800)
Financial interest on debt (889) - (889)
Financial income from marketable securities & cash equivalents 85 - 85

Cost of net debt (804) - (804)
Other financial income 696 - 696
Other financial expense (702) - (702)
Equity in net income (loss) of affiliates 3,435 (20) 3,415
Income taxes (15,094) 327 (14,767)
Consolidated net income 14,566 (3,045) 11,521
Group share 14,292 (3,064) 11,228
Non-controlling interests 274 19 293

(a)

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Adjustments include special items, inventory valuation effect and the effect of changes in fair value.

Consolidated
statement of

(M$) Adjusted  Adjustments® income
Sales 257,049 (12) 257,037
Excise taxes (22,821) - (22,821)

Revenues from sales 234,228 (12) 234,216
Purchases, net of inventory variation (162,607) (301) (162,908)
Other operating expenses (28,156) (1,117) (29,273)
Exploration costs (1,857) - (1,857)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization of tangible assets and mineral interests (10,346) (1,891) (12,237)
Other income 876 1,021 1,897
Other expense (579) (599) (1,178)
Financial interest on debt (863) - (863)
Financial income from marketable securities & cash equivalents 128 - 128

Cost of net debt (735) - (735)
Other financial income 717 - 717
Other financial expense (641) - (641)
Equity in net income (loss) of affiliates 2,695 (113) 2,582
Income taxes (17,600) 853 (16,747)
Consolidated net income 15,995 (2,159) 13,836
Group share 15,772 (2,124) 13,648
Non-controlling interests 223 (35) 188

(a)
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D) Adjustment items by business segment

The adjustment items to income as per Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements are detailed as follows:

Adjustments to operating income

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Inventory valuation effect - (2,944) (525) - (3,469)
Effect of changes in fair value 31 - - - 31
Restructuring charges - - - - -
Asset impairment charges (6,529) (1,450) - - (7,979)
Other items (164) (36) (26) - (226)
Total (6,662) (4,430) (551) - (11,643)
Adjustments to net income, Group share
For the year ended December 31, 2014 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Inventory valuation effect - (2,114) (339) - (2,453)
Effect of changes in fair value 25 - - - 25
Restructuring charges - (23) @) - (20)
Asset impairment charges (5,514) (1,409) (140) - (7,063)
Gains (losses) on disposals of assets 1,314 (105) - - 1,209
Other items (193) (58) (40) - (291)
Total (4,368) (3,699) (526) - (8,593)
Adjustments to operating income
For the year ended December 31, 2013 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Inventory valuation effect - (978) (87) - (1,065)
Effect of changes in fair value (74) - - - (74)
Restructuring charges - (373) ?3) - (376)
Asset impairment charges (855) (184) 4) - (1,043)
Other items (113) (54) (44) - (211)
Total (1,042) (1,589) (138) - (2,769)
Adjustments to net income, Group share
For the year ended December 31, 2013 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Inventory valuation effect - (656) (72) - (728)
Effect of changes in fair value (58) - - - (58)
Restructuring charges - (537) (30) - (567)
Asset impairment charges (581) (183) 9) - (773)
Gains (losses) on disposals of assets (58) (59) - - (117)
Other items (113) (676) 47 (79) (821)
Total (810) (2,111) (64) (79) (3,064)
Adjustments to operating income
For the year ended December 31, 2012 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Total
(M$) Chemicals Services
Inventory valuation effect - (230) (71) - (301)
Effect of changes in fair value (12) - - - (12)
Restructuring charges - 3 - - (©)]
Asset impairment charges (1,538) (266) (87) - (1,891)
Other items (752) (24) (223) (115) (1,114)
Total (2,302) (523) (381) (115) (3,321)
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Adjustments to net income, Group share

For the year ended December 31, 2012 Upstream Refining & Marketing & Corporate Total
(M$) Chemicals Services

Inventory valuation effect - (149) (52) - (201)

Effect of changes in fair value 9) - - - 9)

Restructuring charges - (31) (68) - (99)

Asset impairment charges (985) (247) (155) (39) (1,426)

Gains (losses) on disposals of assets 326 - - 438 764

Other items (491) (57) (140) (465) (1,153)

Total (1,159) (484) (415) (66) (2,124)

E) Additional information on impairments

In the Upstream, Refining & Chemicals and Marketing & Services segments, impairments of assets have been
recognized for the year ended December 31, 2014, with an impact of $7,979 million in operating income and $7,063
million in net income, Group share. These impairments have been disclosed as adjustments to operating income and
adjustments to net income, Group share. These items are identified in paragraph 4D above as adjustment items within
the heading “Asset impairment charges”.

The impairment losses impact certain Cash Generating Units (CGU) for which there were indications of impairment,
due mainly to changes in the operating conditions or the economic environment of their specific businesses.

The principles applied are the following:

e the recoverable amount of CGU’s has been based on their value in use, as defined in Note 1 paragraph L to
the Consolidated Financial Statements "Impairment of long-lived assets";

e the future cash flows have been determined with the assumptions in the long-term plan of the Group. These
assumptions (including future prices of products, supply and demand for products, future production volumes)
represent the best estimate by management of the Group of all economic conditions during the remaining life
of assets;

e the future cash flows, based on the long-term plan, are prepared over a period consistent with the life of the
assets within the CGU. They are prepared post-tax and include specific risks attached to CGU assets. They
are discounted using an 7% post-tax discount rate, this rate being a weighted-average capital cost estimated
from historical market data. This rate was 8% for the years ending 2012 and 2013.

e the value in use calculated by discounting the above post-tax cash flows using an 7% post-tax discount rate is
not materially different from value in use calculated by discounting pre-tax cash flows using a pre-tax discount
rate determined by an iterative computation from the post-tax value in use. These pre-tax discount rates are in
a range from 7% to 11% in 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 impairments of assets have been recognized in respect of CGUs of the
Upstream segment with an impact of $6,529 million in operating income and $5,514 million in net income, Group
share. These impairments recognized in 2014 concern mainly:

e 0il sands assets in Canada, with the deteriorating economic environment affecting the profitability of the Fort
Hills project under development and preventing a final development decision in the near future for the Joslyn
and Northern Lights projects. Impairments recognized amount to $2,494 million in operating profit and $2,160
million in net income, Group share;

e non-conventional gas assets in the United-States, China, Venezuela and Algeria, whose plans and
development potential in an unfavorable economic environment have been revised downwards. Impairments
recognized amount to $2,944 million in operating profit and $2,080 million in net income, Group share;

e other assets in Africa (impairment of $924 million in operating profit and $785 million in net income, Group
share), on the Shotkman project in Russia, for which the technical development scheme does not provide an
acceptable profitability (impairment of $350 million in net income, Group share), and in Kazakhstan on the
Kashagan project, following technical problems and the decision to replace the project's pipelines
(impairments recognized amount to $167 million in operating profit and $121 million in net income, Group
share).

Given the sharp decline in oil prices observed over the last months of 2014, cash flows determined from the long-term
plan were modified to integrate weaker oil prices over the first three years.A variation of +10% in oil prices under
identical operating conditions would have a positive impact of $1,312 million in operating profit and $1,038 million in
net income, Group share. A variation of -1 point in the discount rate would have a positive impact of $985 million in
operating profit and $802 million in net income, Group share. For these assets and certain assets whose value in use
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is close to their net book value, a variation of -10% in oil prices, except for the first three years where it is increased to
-25%, under identical operating conditions, would have a negative impact of $2,338 million in operating profit and
$1,588 million in net income, Group share. These sensitivities in price concern mainly assets impaired in 2014 as well
as other assets, notably in the United States and Russia. A variation of +1 point in the discount rate would have a
negative impact of $1,030 million in operating profit and $831 million in net income, Group share

The CGUs for the Refining & Chemicals segment are defined by the legal entities having the operating activities for
the refining and petrochemical activities. The CGUs for the other activities of the sector are global divisions, each
division grouping together a set of businesses or homogeneous products for strategic, commercial and industrial
plans. For the year 2014, in a context of a reduction in demand for refined products and persistent weakness in
refining margins in Europe, the Group recognized impairments of $1,450 million in operating profit and $1,409 million
in net income, Group share, on refining CGU's in France and the United Kingdom. A +5% variation in gross margin,
under identical operating conditions, would have a positive impact of $1,036 million in operating profit and in net
income, Group share. A variation of -1 point in the discount rate would have a positive impact of $199 million in
operating income and net income, Group share. Opposite variations in gross margin and discount rate would have an
impact respectively of $(814) million and $(139) million in operating income and in net income, Group share.

The CGUs of Marketing & Services are subsidiaries or groups of subsidiaries organized by relevant geographical
zone. For the year 2014 the Group recorded impairments on CGUs of the Marketing & Services segment of $140
million in net income, Group share. A of +5% variation in gross margin, under identical operating conditions, would
have a positive impact of $45 million in net income, Group share. A variation of -1 point in the discount rate would
have a positive impact of $40 million in net income, Group share. Opposite variations in gross margin and discount
rate would have impacts respectively of $(45) million and $(28) million in net income, Group share.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, impairments of assets were recognized in the Upstream, Refining &
Chemicals, Marketing & Services and Holding segments with an impact of $1,043 million in operating income and
$773 million in net income, Group share. These impairments have been disclosed as adjustments to operating income
and adjustments to net income, Group share.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, impairments of assets have been recognized in the Upstream, Refining &
Chemicals, Marketing & Services and Holding segments with an impact of $1,891 million in operating income and
$1,426 million in net income, Group share. These impairments have been disclosed as adjustments to operating
income and adjustments to net income, Group share.

No reversal of impairment has been recognized for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014.
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5) Information by geographical area

Rest of North Rest of the
(M$) France Europe  America Africa world Total
For the year ended December 31, 2014
Non-Group sales 51,471 114,747 23,766 23,281 22,857 236,122
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, net 4,350 25,137 16,064 41,405 34,602 121,558
Capital expenditures 1,266 5,880 3,658 9,798 9,907 30,509
For the year ended December 31, 2013
Non-Group sales 57,650 128,661 22,332 23,146 19,936 251,725
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, net 6,251 26,840 19,588 37,847 32,349 122,875
Capital expenditures 1,772 6,289 4,157 10,705 11,508 34,431
For the year ended December 31, 2012
Non-Group sales 59,077 133,439 22,675 23,025 18,821 257,037
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, net 6,017 23,349 20,082 32,983 26,011 108,442
Capital expenditures 2,041 5,660 4,045 9,346 8,383 29,475
6) Operating expenses
For the year ended December 31,
(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Purchases, net of inventory variation® ® (152,975) (160,849) (162,908)
Exploration costs (1,964) (2,169) (1,857)
Other operating expenses'® (28,349) (28,764) (29,273)
of which non-current operating liabilities (allowances) reversals 717 184 560
of which current operating liabilities (allowances) reversals (147) 6 (65)
Operating expenses (183,288) (191,782) (194,038)

(a) Includes taxes paid on oil and gas production in the Upstream segment, namely royalties.

(b) The Group values under / over lifting at market value.

(c) Principally composed of production and administrative costs (see in particular the payroll costs as detailed in Note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements “Payroll and staff"). Also includes for 2012 an amount of $226 million for the exceptional contribution of 4% on the value of the
oil stocks established by the second corrective finance act for 2012 in France. This exceptional contribution was due by every person, with the
exception of the state, owning volumes of certain types of petroleum products situated in the territory of metropolitan France.

7) Other income and other expense

For the year ended December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Gains on disposal of assets 2,085 1,991 1,715
Foreign exchange gains 216 9 34
Other 276 290 148
Other income 2,577 2,290 1,897
Losses on disposal of assets (106) (1,911) -
Foreign exchange losses - - -
Amortization of other intangible assets (excl. mineral interests) (254) (292) (320)
Other (594) (597) (858)
Other expense (954) (2,800) (1,178)

Other income

In 2014, gains on disposal of assets mainly related to sales of assets in the Upstream segment in Angola and the
United-States and to sales of interests, also in the Upstream segment in: the company GTT (GazTransport et
Technigaz), the Shah Deniz field and the South Caucasus pipeline (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements).

In 2013, gains on disposals were mainly related to the sale of Transport et Infrastructures Gaz France (TIGF) and the
sales of interests in the Upstream segment: 25% interest in the Tempa Rossa field in Italy and all interests in Trinidad
& Tobago (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
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In 2012, gains on disposal of assets were mainly related to the sale of the interest in Sanofi and to the sale of assets in
the Upstream segment (sales in Colombia (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), Great Britain and
Nigeria).

Other expense

In 2014, the loss on disposals is mainly related to the sale of CCP Composites to Polynt Group. The heading “Other”
mainly consists of the impairment of shares and loans of non-consolidated subsidiaries for an amount of $88 million,
$43 million of restructuring charges as well as $34 million for expenses relating to sales.

In 2013, the loss on disposals is mainly related to the sale to Suncor Energy Inc. of TOTAL’s 49% interest in the
Voyageur upgrader project in Canada (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The heading “Other”
mainly consists of $281 million of restructuring charges in the Upstream, Refining & Chemicals and Marketing &
Services segments.

In 2012, the heading “Other” was mainly comprised of a provision for the amount of $398 million in relation to a
transaction in progress with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Department of
Justice (DoJ) in the United States (see Note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

8) Other financial income and expense

As of December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Dividend income on non-consolidated subsidiaries 282 202 286
Capitalized financial expenses 348 343 319
Other 191 151 112
Other financial income 821 696 717
Accretion of asset retirement obligations (543) (584) (520)
Other (133) (118) (121)
Other financial expense (676) (702) (641)

9) Income taxes

TOTAL S.A. is taxed in accordance with the common French tax regime.

Since August 2012, an additional tax to corporate income tax of 3% is due on dividends distributed by French
companies or foreign organizations subject to corporate income tax in France. This tax is liable on amounts
distributed, the payment of which was due from August 17th, 2012, the effective date of the law.

The impact of this additional tax for the Group is a charge of $222 million in 2014, $214 million in 2013 and of $154
million in 2012. This additional tax is not tax deductible.

In addition, no deferred tax is recognized for the temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of
investments in foreign subsidiaries which are considered to be permanent investments. Undistributed earnings from
foreign subsidiaries considered to be reinvested indefinitely amounted to $50,983 million as of December 31, 2014.
The determination of the tax effect relating to such reinvested income is not practicable.

No deferred tax is recognized on unremitted earnings (approximately $39,244 million) of the Group's French
subsidiaries since the remittance of such earnings would be tax exempt for the subsidiaries in which the Company
owns 95% or more of the outstanding shares.

Income taxes are detailed as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Current income taxes (10,904) (13,607) (15,970)
Deferred income taxes 2,290 (1,160) (777)
Total income taxes (8,614) (14,767) (16,747)
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Before netting deferred tax assets and liabilities by fiscal entity, the components of deferred tax balances are as
follows:

As of December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Net operating losses and tax carry forwards 5,213 4,586 2,965
Employee benefits 1,770 1,641 2,089
Other temporary non-deductible provisions 6,258 5,992 5,011
Differences in depreciations (18,129) (20,948) (18,582)
Other temporary tax deductions (2,542) (3,267) (3,558)
Valuation allowance (3,301) (2,016) (949)
Net deferred tax liability (10,731) (14,012) (13,024)

Carried forward tax losses on net operating losses in the table above for $5,213 million as of December 31, 2014,
includes notably France for $1,283 million, the United Kingdom for $1,128 million, Canada for $739 million and
Belgium for $736 million.

The impairment of deferred tax assets in the table above for $3,301 million as of December 31, 2014, relates notably
to Congo for an amount of $1,030 million, to France for an amount of $939 million and to Belgium for an amount of
$415 million.

After netting deferred tax assets and liabilities by fiscal entity, deferred taxes are presented on the balance sheet as
follows:

As of December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets, non-current 4,079 3,838 2,982
Deferred tax liahilities, non-current (14,810) (17,850) (16,006)
Net amount (10,731) (14,012) (13,024)

The net deferred tax variation in the balance sheet is analyzed as follows:

As of December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Opening balance (14,012) (13,024) (12,687)
Deferred tax on income 2,290 (1,160) (777)
Deferred tax on shareholders' equit?/ @ 562 (349) 547
Changes in scope of consolidation 356 153 89
Currency translation adjustment 73 368 (196)
Closing balance (10,731) (14,012) (13,024)

(&) This amount includes mainly deferred taxes on actuarial gains and losses, current income taxes and deferred taxes for changes in fair
value of listed securities classified as financial assets available for sale, as well as deferred taxes related to the cash flow hedge (see Note 17
to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

(b) Changes in scope of consolidation include, as of December 31, 2014 the impact of reclassifications in assets classified as held for sale
and liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale for $256 million.
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Reconciliation between provision for income taxes and pre-tax income:

For the year ended December 31,

(M$) 2014 2013 2012
Consolidated net income 4,250 11,521 13,836
Provision for income taxes 8,614 14,767 16,747
Pre-tax income 12,864 26,288 30,583
French statutory tax rate 38.00% 38.00% 36.10%
Theoretical tax charge (4,888) (9,989) (11,040)
Difference between French and foreign income tax rates (4,256) (6,131) (7,637)
Tax effect of equity in income (loss) of affiliates 1,012 1,298 933
Permanent differences 833 1,130 1,048
Adjustments on prior years income taxes 33 - 105
Adjustments on deferred tax related to changes in tax rates Q) 3 (89)
Changes in valuation allowance of deferred tax assets (1,347) (1,078) (67)
Net provision for income taxes (8,614) (14,767) (16,747)

The difference between the French tax rate and the tax rates of foreign subsidiaries is mainly due to the taxation of
profits made by the Group in countries where it conducts its exploration and production activities at higher tax rates
than French tax rates.

The French statutory tax rate includes the standard corporate tax rate (33.33%) and additional applicable taxes that
bring the overall tax rate to 38.00% in 2014 (versus 38.00% in 2013 and 36.10% in 2012).

Permanent differences are mainly due to impairment of goodwill and to dividends from non-consolidated companies as
well as the specific taxation rules applicable to certain activities.

Net operating losses and carried forward tax credits

Deferred tax assets related to carried forward tax credits on net operating losses expire in the following years:

As of December 31, 2014 2013 2012

(M$) Basis Tax Basis Tax Basis Tax
2013 - - - - 417 198
2014 - - 491 236 329 153
2015 443 218 372 178 221 99
2016 306 151 226 105 34 11
2017@ 623 229 565 185 4,206 1,282
2018 424 143 4,435 1,332 - -
2019 and after 3,313 899 - - - -
Unlimited 9,906 3,573 7,593 2,550 4,022 1,222
Total 15,015 5213 13,682 4,586 9,229 2,965

@ Net operating losses and carried forward tax credits in 2017 and after for 2012.
® Net operating losses and carried forward tax credits in 2018 and after for 2013.
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10) Intangible assets

As of December 31, 2014 Amortization and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Goodwill 1,639 (1,020) 619
Proved mineral interests 12,215 (5,514) 6,701
Unproved mineral interests 10,673 (4,498) 6,175
Other intangible assets 4,387 (3,200) 1,187
Total intangible assets 28,914 (14,232) 14,682
As of December 31, 2013 Amortization and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Goodwill 2,512 (1,263) 1,249
Proved mineral interests 12,309 (5,003) 7,306
Unproved mineral interests 10,430 (1,785) 8,645
Other intangible assets 4,978 (3,783) 1,195
Total intangible assets 30,229 (11,834) 18,395
As of December 31, 2012 Amortization and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Goodwill 2,449 (1,275) 1,174
Proved mineral interests 11,614 (4,343) 7,271
Unproved mineral interests 8,465 (1,204) 7,261
Other intangible assets 4,714 (3,455) 1,259
Total intangible assets 27,242 (10,277) 16,965

Changes in net intangible assets are analyzed in the following table:

Net amount as of Acquisitions Disposals Amortization and Currency Other Net amount as of
January 1, impairment translation December 31,
adjustment
(M$)
2014 18,395 1,000 (178) (3,920) (276)  (339) 14,682
2013 16,965 3,648 (388) (1,527) (10)  (293) 18,395
2012 16,062 3,169 (75) (1,849) 122 (464) 16,965

In 2014, the heading “Amortization and impairment" includes the accounting impact of exceptional asset impairments
for an amount of $3,177 million (see note 4D to the Consolidated Financial statements).

In 2014, the heading “Other” mainly includes mineral interests in Utica reclassified into acquisitions for $(524) million,
the recognition of mineral interests in Papua New Guinea for $429 million, the reclassification of assets in accordance
with IFRS 5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” for $(561) million (see Note 34 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements) and the reversal of the reclassification under IFRS 5 as at December 31, 2013 for
$96 million corresponding to disposals.

In 2013, the heading “Other” mainly included mineral interests in Utica reclassified into acquisitions for $(604) million,
the reclassification of assets in accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”
for $(93) million (see Note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements) and the reversal of the reclassification under
IFRS 5 as at December 31, 2012 for $331 million corresponding to disposals.

In 2012, the heading “Other” mainly included the reclassification of assets in accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” for $(428) million (see Note 34 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements).
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A summary of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment for the year ended December 31,

2014 is as follows:

Net goodwill as of

Net goodwill as of

(M$) January 1, 2014 Increases Impairments Other December 31, 2014
Upstream 4 4

Refining & Chemicals 1,123 (638) 485
Marketing & Services 88 34 2 (16) 104
Corporate 34 (4 30
Total 1,249 34 (2) (662) 619
11) Property, plant and equipment

As of December 31, 2014 Depreciation and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Upstream properties

Proved properties 139,294 (86,326) 52,968
Unproved properties 2,153 - 2,153
Work in progress 38,698 (1,574) 37,124
Subtotal 180,145 (87,900) 92,245
Other property, plant and equipment

Land 1,683 (613) 1,070
Machinery, plant and equipment (including transportation equipment) 30,966 (24,874) 6,092
Buildings 8,141 (5,291) 2,850
Work in progress 2,367 (324) 2,043
Other 8,673 (6,097) 2,576
Subtotal 51,830 (37,199) 14,631
Total property, plant and equipment 231,975 (125,099) 106,876
As of December 31, 2013 Depreciation and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Upstream properties

Proved properties 134,512 (83,423) 51,089
Unproved properties 1,432 - 1,432
Work in progress 34,668 (56) 34,612
Subtotal 170,612 (83,479) 87,133
Other property, plant and equipment

Land 1,846 (582) 1,264
Machinery, plant and equipment (including transportation equipment) 35,215 (26,903) 8,312
Buildings 9,050 (5,870) 3,180
Work in progress 2,318 (465) 1,853
Other 9,717 (6,979) 2,738
Subtotal 58,146 (40,799) 17,347
Total property, plant and equipment 228,758 (124,278) 104,480
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As of December 31, 2012 Depreciation and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Upstream properties

Proved properties 115,971 (76,303) 39,668
Unproved properties 302 - 302
Work in progress 35,155 (227) 34,928
Subtotal 151,428 (76,530) 74,898

Other property, plant and equipment

Land 1,787 (537) 1,250
Machinery, plant and equipment (including transportation equipment) 33,645 (25,673) 7,972
Buildings 8,562 (5,505) 3,057
Work in progress 2,285 (365) 1,920
Other 9,029 (6,649) 2,380
Subtotal 55,308 (38,729) 16,579
Total property, plant and equipment 206,736 (115,259) 91,477

Changes in net property, plant and equipment are analyzed in the following table:

Net amount as of Acquisitions Disposals Depreciation and Currency Other Net amount as of
January 1, impairment translation December 31,

(M$) adjustment
2014 104,480 25,320 (2,211) (16,939) (4,438) 664 106,876
2013 91,477 26,100 (2,828) (11,831) (361) 1,923 104,480
2012 83,400 22,405 (813) (11,617) 1,286 (3,184) 91,477

In 2014, the heading “Disposals” mainly includes the impact of sales in the Upstream segment (sale of block 15/06 in
Angola and the Shah Deniz field in Azerbaijan).

In 2014, the heading “Depreciation and impairment” includes the impact of impairments of assets recognized for an
amount of $4,802 million (see Note 4D to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

In 2014, the heading “Other” principally corresponds to the increase of the asset for site restitution for an amount of
$1,366 million. It also includes $(466) million related to the reclassification of assets classified in accordance with IFRS
5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” primarily related to the sales of Total Coal South
Africa and Bostik.

In 2013, the heading “Disposals” mainly includes the impact of sales of assets in the Upstream segment (sale of the
Voyageur Upgrader project in Canada and the sale of TOTAL'’s interests in the Tempa Rossa field in Italy).

In 2013, the heading “Depreciation and impairment” includes the impact of impairments of assets recognized for
$1,043 million (see Note 4D to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

In 2013, the heading “Other” principally corresponds to the increase of the asset for site restitution for an amount of
$2,748 million. It also includes $(538) million related to the reclassification of assets classified in accordance with IFRS
5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” and $(206) million related to the sale of the fertilizing
businesses in Europe.

In 2012, the heading “Disposals” mainly included the impact of sales of assets in the Upstream segment in Great
Britain, Norway and Nigeria.

In 2012, the heading “Depreciation and impairment” included the impact of impairments of shale gas assets in the
Barnett basin recognized for $1,457 million (see Note 4D to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

In 2012, the heading “Other” principally included the reclassification of assets in accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” for an amount of $3,844 million.
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Property, plant and equipment presented above include the following amounts for facilities and equipment under

finance leases that have been capitalized:

As of December 31, 2014

Depreciation and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Machinery, plant and equipment 520 (443) 77
Buildings 72 (45) 27
Other 245 (29) 216
Total 837 (517) 320
As of December 31, 2013 Depreciation and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Machinery, plant and equipment 519 (417) 102
Buildings 72 (35) 37
Other 263 17) 246
Total 854 (469) 385
As of December 31, 2012 Depreciation and

(M$) Cost impairment Net
Machinery, plant and equipment 502 (378) 124
Buildings 69 (33) 36
Other 267 3) 264
Total 838 (414) 424
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12) Equity affiliates: investments and loans

The contribution of equity affiliates in the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of income and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is presented below:

Equity value

As of December 31, 2014 2013 2012
(M$)

Total Associates 11,632 13,717 12,374
Total Joint ventures 3,016 3,146 2,665
Total 14,648 16,863 15,039
Loans 4,626 3,554 3,114
Total 19,274 20,417 18,153

Equity share in profit/(loss)

As of December 31, 2014 2013 2012
(M$)

Total Associates 2,786 3,238 2,520
Total Joint ventures (124) 177 62
Total 2,662 3,415 2,582
Other comprehensive income

As of DeceFr)n ber 31, 2014 2013 2012
(M$)

Total Associates (1,532) (669) 134
Total Joint ventures (6) (136) 115
Total (1,538) (805) 249

In cases where the Group holds less than 20% of the voting rights in another entity, the determination of whether the
Group exercises significant influence is also based on other facts and circumstances i.e. representation on the board
of directors or an equivalent governing body of the entity, participation in policy-making processes, including
participation in decisions relating to dividends or other distributions, significant transactions between the investor and
the entity, exchange of management personnel, or provision of essential technical information.
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Information (100% gross) relating to significant associates is as follows:

Upstream Novatek @ Liquefaction entities PetroCedefio

(M$) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Non current assets 9,551 13,617 11,465 33,909 31,680 30,751 6,458 6,263 6,074
Current assets 1648 2829 1652 9,007 7,684 7,480 10,033 5059 4,499
Total Assets 11,199 16,446 13,117 42,916 39,364 38,231 16,491 11,322 10,573
Shareholder's equity 7,135 10,683 9,289 25090 23,256 20,919 5597 5581 5578
Non current liabilities 3352 4,934 2,718 10,876 11,474 12,686 274 186 208
Current liabilities 712 829 1,110 6,950 4,634 4,626 10,620 5555 4,787
Total Liabilities 11,199 16,446 13,117 42,916 39,364 38,231 16,491 11,322 10,573
Revenue from sales 9,222 9,355 7,019 39,502 38,728 38,296 3,644 4,117 4,707
Net income 2,759 2,647 3,744 14,269 14,381 13,941 343 600 522
Other comprehensive income (5,431) (697) 372 - - - - - .
% owned 18.24% 16.96% 15.34% 30.32% 30.32% 30.32%
Revaluation identifiable assets on equity afiliates 1,944 3,545 3,608 - - - - - -
Equity value 3245 5357 5034 4130 3,625 3,049 1697 1,692 1,692
Equity share in profit/(loss) 193 221 43 2,125 2,027 1,769 104 182 158
Equity other comprehensive income (1,844) (621) 143 200 (21) (1) - - -
Dividends paid to the Group 126 102 89 1,687 1,579 1,908 99 182 60

(@) Information includes estimates at the date of Total's financial statements.

Novatek, listed in Moscow and London, is the 2nd largest producer of natural gas in Russia. The Group share of
Novatek's market value amounted to $ 4 234 million as at December 31, 2014. Novatek is consolidated by the equity
method. Total considers, in fact, that it exercises significant influence particularly via its representation on the board of
directors of Novatek and its interest in the major project of Yamal LNG.

The Group's interests in associates operating liquefaction plants are combined. The amounts include investments in;
Nigeria LNG (15.00%), Angola LNG Ltd. (13.60%), Yemen LNG Co (39.62%), Qatargas (10.00%), Qatar Liquefied
Gas Company Limited Il — Train B (16.70%), Oman LNG (5.54%), Brass LNG (20.48%) and Abu Dhabi Gas Lc
(5.00%).

PetroCedefio produces and upgrades extra-heavy crude oil in Venezuela.
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Saudi Aramco Total Qatar

Refining & Chemicals Refining & Petrochemicals

(M$) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Non current assets 12,654 12,356 10,380 3,020 2,867 2,561
Current assets 1,250 1,331 98 1,385 1,277 1,086
Total Assets 13,904 13,687 10,478 4,405 4,144 3,647
Shareholder's equity 1,672 1,485 623 2,930 2,629 2,271
Non current liabilities 9,584 10,441 9,253 409 481 905
Current liabilities 2,648 1,761 602 1,066 1,034 471
Total Liabilities 13,904 13,687 10,478 4,405 4,144 3,647
Revenue from sales 7,061 - - 1,817 2,161 1,858
Net income (113) (89) (99) 875 1,009 925
Other comprehensive income - B B B B 3
% owned 37.50% 37.50% 37.50%

Revaluation identifiable assets on e